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FROM: Lisa Karcher, AICP, Planner II 

DATE: April 16, 2010 

SUBJECT: Plan Case 2127-S-10, Request for waiver of sidewalk requirements of the 
Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code for Wisley Inn/Super 8 
Motel First Subdivision 

______________________________________________________________________________

Introduction and Background 

Khalid Hussain has submitted a petition for a waiver from the sidewalk requirements of the 
Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code (Section 21-37-A) for the Wisley Inn/Super 8 
Motel First Subdivision.  Section 21-37.A of the Code requires that sidewalks be constructed on 
“both sides of each street” in commercial developments.  In lieu of constructing a sidewalk per 
the Code, the petitioner is proposing to construct connecting sidewalks from the proposed Wisley 
Inn (Lot 12) to adjacent developed property to the south, east and west. 

The Urbana City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2008-06-046 on June 2, 2008, approving the 
final subdivision plat for the Wisley Inn/Super 8 Motel First Subdivision. (See Exhibit B)  
Approval of the final plat was conditioned upon the drainage plan, engineering plans and 
specifications, required improvements, soil erosion plan and all of the requirements of the 
Subdivision and Land Development Code being approved by the City Engineer.  The City 
Council has subsequently approved two extensions of the approval of the final plat.  The 
approval of the final plat will expire on June 15, 2010.  An extension of the approval of the final 
plat has been requested and will be considered by the City Council along with this waiver 
request.  It is anticipated that construction will begin in mid June depending upon the outcome of 
the waiver request.

The final plat for the Wisley Inn/Super 8 Motel First Subdivision encompasses 2.99 acres to be 
divided into two lots.  The property is located immediately southeast of the I-74/Lincoln Avenue 
interchange. (See Exhibit A)  A Super 8 Motel currently occupies the eastern portion of the site.  
The subject site is proposed to be subdivided to facilitate the development of a second hotel.      
 
Lot 12 of the Wisley Inn/Super 8 Motel First Subdivision will be accessed from Kenyon Road 
via Killarney Street. (See Exhibit A)  Kenyon Road once served as a frontage road to I-74 and 
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extended across Lincoln Avenue to the west.  This extension across Lincoln Avenue was severed 
when improvements were made to I-74 in the early 1990’s.  Since that time Killarney Street has 
been constructed and now serves as access to property that was once served by the frontage road.  
Currently the section of Kenyon Road, on which the subdivision is located, extends from east of 
Lincoln Avenue, west to the Urbana Country Club Property, and is not currently accessible to 
thru traffic.  The approved subdivision plat will provide a connection from the Killarney Street 
cul-de-sac to Kenyon Road.  Kenyon Road will serve only as primary access to the Wisley Inn 
site, it does not connect to developed property to the east or west.  Property to the north of 
Kenyon Road is I-74 right-of-way and cannot be further developed. 

Discussion

The petitioner is requesting a waiver from the sidewalk requirements of Section 21-37.A of the 
Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code.  The Code requires that a sidewalk be 
constructed along the south side of Kenyon Road for the length of the Subdivision.  In lieu of 
constructing the required sidewalk, the petitioner is proposing to construct three sidewalk links 
that will connect the proposed Wisley Inn site (Lot 12) to adjacent developed properties to the 
west (Urbana Garden Restaurant), to the south (Lincoln Commerce Centre office building), and 
to the east (Super 8 Motel).  Please see Exhibit C for an illustration of the location of these 
sidewalk connections as proposed by the petitioner.   The petitioner has noted that “proposed 
pedestrian accessibility is improved by construction of connecting sidewalks in lieu of 
construction of a sidewalk along the existing dead end Kenyon Road.”

City staff is supportive of the waiver to construct connecting sidewalks to adjacent properties to 
the east, south and west in lieu of constructing a sidewalk along Kenyon Road.  Kenyon Road is 
a frontage road that does not connect with or provide access to any location other than the 
proposed subdivision.  In contrast, the proposed connecting sidewalks will provide access to 
adjacent properties, which is consistent with the intent of the sidewalk requirements of the 
Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code.  Although it is unusual to allow for a waiver 
from the sidewalk requirements, in this case the alternative proposed makes more sense. 

According to Section 21-7 of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code, the 
petitioner must justify the granting of a waiver from strict compliance with the Code by showing 
that the waiver meets certain criteria.  These criteria are identified and discussed below: 

1. There are conditions of topography or other site specific reasons that make the 
application of any particular requirement of the land development code unnecessary or, 
in some cases perhaps, even useless; 

The petitioner has indicated that “a sidewalk along the street will not improve pedestrian 
accessibility in this area” because the Subdivision is “located at the western end of a former 
Interstate Frontage Road which now dead ends near the western side of the proposed 
subdivision”.  The property to the north of Kenyon Road is interstate right-of-way and cannot be 
developed.  Since Kenyon Road dead ends near the western edge of the Subdivision and 
development north of Kenyon Road is not possible, the required sidewalk will only ever lead to 
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the Wisley Inn site.  The sidewalk will not connect with a sidewalk to the west and will not lead 
to any other destination than the Wisley Inn site.   Staff is in agreement that providing for 
sidewalk connections on-site to adjacent developed property would improve pedestrian 
accessibility more than if a sidewalk was constructed on what is a dead-end frontage road that 
does not provide access to anything other than the proposed development.  

 2. The granting of the requested waiver would not harm other nearby properties; 

The granting of the waiver to the Subdivision and Land Development Code will not have a 
negative impact on nearby properties since the required sidewalk would only essentially serve 
the proposed subdivision.  The waiver should result in a positive impact on adjoining properties 
since the petitioner is proposing to construct connecting sidewalks to the adjacent properties. 

3. The waiver would not negatively impact the public health, safety and welfare, including 
the objectives and goals set forth in the comprehensive plan. 

The granting of the requested waiver would not cause any harm to the public health, safety and 
welfare of the community and would not be contrary to the objectives and goals set forth in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Allowing for the construction of the connecting sidewalks to adjacent 
properties in lieu of requiring a sidewalk along Kenyon Road will provide for a more logical and 
direct route to adjacent development while meeting the Comprehensive Plan goal of the 
connectivity between developments. 

Summary of Findings

1. The Urbana City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2008-06-046 in June 2, 2008, approving the 
final subdivision plat for the Wisley Inn/Super 8 Motel First Subdivision. The City Council 
has subsequently approved two extensions of the approval of the final plat.  The approval of 
the final plat will expire on June 15, 2010.  An extension of the approval of the final plat has 
been requested and will be considered by the City Council along with this waiver request. 

2. The petitioner is requesting a waiver from the sidewalk requirements of the Urbana 
Subdivision and Land Development Code (Section 21-37.A) for the Subdivision.  In lieu of 
constructing a sidewalk along Kenyon Road per the Code, the petitioner is proposing to 
construct connecting sidewalks from the proposed Wisley Inn (Lot 12) to adjacent developed 
property to the south, east and west. 

3. Kenyon Road is a frontage road that only provides access to the proposed subdivision.  The 
proposed connecting sidewalks will provide access to adjacent properties consistent with the 
intent of the sidewalk requirements of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code.  

4. The requested waiver will not be harmful to other properties and would not negatively impact 
the public health, safety and welfare of the community, nor impede the attainment of goals 
and objectives contained in the Comprehensive Plan. 
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forward the case to City Co

forward the case to City C

Options

The Urbana Plan Commission has the following options regarding Plan Case 2127-S-10: 

a. uncil with a recommendation for approval of the requested 
waiver of the sidewalk requirements of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development 
Code; or 

b. ouncil with a recommendation for denial of the requested 
waiver of the sidewalk requirements of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development 
Code.

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Urbana Plan Commission forward this case to the City Council with a 
recommendation for approval of the requested waiver from the sidewalk requirements of 
Section 21-37.A of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code contingent upon the 
construction of connecting sidewalks from the proposed Wisley Inn (Lot 12) to adjacent property 
to the south, east and west. 

Attachments: Exhibit A:  Location Map 
  Exhibit B:  Approved Final Plat for Wisley Inn/Super 8 Motel First Subdivision 
  Exhibit C:  Petition for Waiver of Subdivision Regulations 

 
cc: Khalid Hussain 

801 West Champaign 
Rantoul, IL   61866 

 

Roger Meyer 
Berns, Clancy and Associates 
P.O. Box 755 
Urbana, IL   61803-0755 
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Exhibit A: Location Map

Plan Case: 2127-S-10
Subject:Waiver Request for the Wisley Inn/Super 8 Motel First Subdivision
Location: SE of I-74/Lincoln Avenue Interchange
Petitioner: Khalid Hussain

Kil
lar
ney

St

Ke
nyo
n R
d

Li
nc
ol
n
A
ve

Li
nv
ie
w
A
ve

I-74

F

100 0 100 200 30050
Feet

Ramada

Urbana
Garden
Rest.

Lin
col
n C
om
me
rce

Ce
ntr
e

Harley
Davidson

Su
per
8

Speedway

Baptist
Church

Country
Club

LEGEND

Subject Property



EXHIBIT B





EXHIBIT C







AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY FROM ~ CHAMPAIGN COUNTY 
ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHv 

100 ~ 0 2~ ~ DATED APRIL 2008 ! 

SCAJ.£ IN ITa 

o AAEA OF PROl'OSED ACCESS 
IMPRO\I8olEHTS IN UEU OF SlOEWAU< 
CONSTRUCTlOH ALONG KENYON RQot.I) 

REOUES1 OF WAIVER OF SECTION 8.01 A.l 
~rt.~ 040210

PROPOSED WISLEY INN s;;m;-­
CITY OF URBANA, CONCEPT PLAN I or 1 

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, ILLINOIS JOB~ 




